
 

City of Molalla 

Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Meeting Agenda 
December 14, 2011 

 

Meeting Location: Molalla Adult Community Center, 315 Kennel Ave., Molalla, OR  97038 
Time:  7 p.m. 
 
This meeting will be televised. The regularly scheduled meeting of the Molalla City Council will convene 
following adjournment of this meeting of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency. 
 
Public Comments:  Those wishing to address the Urban Renewal Agency on any agenda item are asked 
to fill out and submit comment cards to the City Recorder prior to the start of the meeting. 
 

Regular Meeting 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Flag Salute 
B. Roll Call 
 

2. MINUTES 
A. MURA Minutes of November 9, 2011 

 
3. COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Written 
B. Oral 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS  

A. Approval to submit a grant application for safety improvements along a section of HWY 
211 near Safeway. 

5. CONTINUING BUSINESS 
A. Report - Updates on Fire District property acquisition 
B. Report - Molalla Forest Road feasability study grant application 
C. Report - URA revenue reassessment  

 
6. RESOLUTIONS 
 
7. ADJOURN 
 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
 
ATTENDANCE: Chair Mike Clarke, Present; Board Member Stephen Clark, Present; Board 
Member Jim Needham, Present; Board Member George Pottle, Present; Board Member Debbie 
Rogge, Present; Board Member Jimmy Thompson, Present; Board Member Dennis Wolfe, 
Present. 
 
STAFF IN-ATTENDANCE: Agency Director, Ellen Barnes; City Recorder, Sadie Cramer; 
Finance Director, Peggy Johnson. 
 
Board Member Rogge made a motion to approve the minutes of the October 26th MURA 
meeting with changes discussed in work session. Board Member Needham seconded. Motion 
approved (7-0) Chair Clarke, Aye; Board Member Clark, Aye; Board Member Needham, Aye; 
Board Member Pottle, Aye; Board Member Rogge, Aye; Board Member Thompson, Aye; Board 
Member Wolfe, Aye. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Molalla Forest Road Feasibility Study Grant Application 
 
During the January 26, 2011 meeting of the Molalla of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency, the 
Board approved a commitment of $9,000 in Urban Renewal funds to be used as a local match for 
the grant from Oregon Special Public Works for a design feasibility study to improve a section of 
the Molalla Forest Road for use as a truck route to the Four Corners industrial site only. 
 
A Town Hall meeting held on October 19, 2011 to receive additional citizen comment regarding 
the feasibility study application generated new ideas and questions worth incorporating into the 
feasibility study scope of work.  The project description in the grant application must be 
modified, at the request of the funding agency, to remove references to state facilities and adjust 
project schedule. 
 
During the October 26, 2011 MURA meeting, the Board tabled the submission of an amended 
grant application until staff could provide more information about the proposed feasibility grant 
application. 
 

• Twenty-five thousand ($25,000) is budgeted in the Urban Renewal Agency Budget for 
materials and services. 

 
• As of the end of the 1st quarter of Fiscal Year 2011-12, the Urban Renewal Agency has 

$171,438 in available resources. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that this topic was tabled at the last council meeting.  This is 
involving a grant application to the Business Oregon Infrastructure Finance Authority.  The grant 
application is for funding a feasibility study to provide information to determine whether it is 
economically, environmentally, politically and socially feasible to put in a truck route along the 
Molalla Forest Road to access adjacent industrial properties.    



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
 
Susan Hansen, PO Box 50, Molalla stated that last week she was asked if she lived in the city 
limits of Molalla.  She stated that she does not live in the city limits and that the reason rural 
residents participate in the city's affairs is because of the lands the city seeks to impact by 
including the Molalla Forest Road which is filled with rural residence.  
 
The grant money the City seeks comes from all Oregon taxpayers not just those within the city 
limits since Molalla is not a self supporting city and the business people in Molalla that advocate 
for this grant largely live outside the city limits. 
 
Ms. Hansen expressed her opposition of the approval of the grant application and informed the 
council of the following: 

• The Molalla Forest Road is not part of the county’s future transportation plan.  
• Part of the $300,000 2006 grant to help provide a detailed plan to improve and market the 

4 Corner Industrial Sites has not been implemented.  
• Riparian Wetland impacts would mean the city would have to apply to the Federal Clean 

Water Act and Oregon Division of State Lands.  
• Friends of Bearcreek believe that the Molalla Forest Road bypass would violate the city’s 

comp plan natural resources goal #5.  
• After a conversation with Tony Coleman at ODOT there is no way road would be 

approved as is based on Motor Freight Transportation Divisions approval criteria.  
• The Hamlet of Molalla Prairies has petitioned DEQ to have a community meeting 

regarding the polluted mill sites. It will be on December 7th at the Molalla Adult Center to 
discuss contamination, possible health effects and future marketability.  

• After a conversation with a DEQ Regional Director Nina Deconcini about the long 
unfinished testing and found that: 

o It is a complex and costly to clean up contaminated sites. 
o It was stated to her by Deconcini that “That Floragon has been a challenging and 

reluctant party to work with.” 
o DEQ required the company to enter into a consent court order.  
o Floragaon received a $474,000 state grant and could not complete phase 1 

requirement of the grant.  
 
In closing she urged the council to focus on items inside the city limits and in the next election 
the voters will be interested in which elected officials carefully weighed the potential outcomes 
of this grant and those who didn’t during these economic times.  
 
Jim Taylor, heavy industrial property on Ona Way recommended that the Council look seriously 
at doing this feasibility study and encouraged the council to move forward. Ms. Hansen has 
elaborated on things that have nothing to do with it. It is a feasibility study to see if this is a 
feasible route to open. If it is feasible the Molalla Forest Road needs to be open because it’s 
integral to the industrial land and the future of Molalla.  Mr. Taylor encouraged the City Council 
heavily weighs this matter and thanked the council for all of their time on it. He hopes the 
council approves it. 
 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
Board Member Thompson stated that in work session it was mentioned that moving forward with 
this application the city could possibly take the contract to the County to work with them on this 
feasibility project.  Board Member Thompson asked that in the event Molalla Forest Road is not 
feasible could we look at other options for an alternative route. He asked Agency Director 
Barnes to elaborate on this. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that we have contacted the County about possibly conducting the 
study instead of going out for an RFQ (request for qualifications). They understand the project 
and they understand the turmoil that it has caused in the County. We also found that by doing 
some further research is information of the ownership of the road.  The section we are looking at 
is co-owned by the City of Molalla and Clackamas County jurisdiction.  They had requested that 
if the Council or agency chooses to move forward with the grant application for the feasibility 
study that at the very least they have an opportunity to review it and sign off on it as well.  They 
are interested in working with us on this project.  
 
Sue Hueblin, 30371 S Cramer Rd stated that she is opposed to the City of Molalla going ahead 
with the feasibility study and turning Molalla Forest Road into a truck route. She further stated 
that when she attended the town hall meeting there seemed to be a lack of community 
understanding, acceptance and support of this project. It would be prudent of for the city to 
develop these things with the public first before moving ahead.  $100,000 of tax payers money 
does not seem well spent to produce a document that we may not be able to do anything with.  
 
She would rather see Molalla look for grants for City projects that would aid road repairs, road 
improvements, bike ways, walk ways and determine what Molalla’s future is first before 
executing this project.    
 
Board Member Needham stated that during the work session we talked about the Oregon 
Business Development feasibility for the proposed study area between Ona Way and Hwy 213 as 
being a mute point because there was already a feasibility study conducted on that area.  He also 
stated that as Board Member Thompson indicated there was a proposal brought forth to have the 
City inquire into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the County to explore this.  Board 
Member Needham asked if it would be appropriate at this time to make a motion or make a  
 
 
recommendation that we look into the possibility of entering into that Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the County to explore options in that area.   
 
Agency Director Barnes request clarification on the Intergovernmental Agreement.  She asked 
Board Member Needham if he was asking for an Intergovernmental Agreement to explore the 
possibility of going forward with the feasibility study.  She stated what was discussed in the 
work shop was that the County had indicated an interest is being the entity that actually conducts 
the feasibility study that would be funded through the Infrastructure Finance Authority. 
 
Board Member Needham stated that the point would be to have the County enter into a 
feasibility study on behalf of Molalla to determine the best method of assessing the employment 
areas that this grant is looking for. 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that using this grant opportunity to pay for services that we would 
acquire through the Intergovernmental Agreement with the County would be used to pay the 
County to conduct the feasibility study which would be arrange through a Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the County.  
 
Board Member Thompson asked if this study wouldn’t be restrictive to the Molalla Forest Road. 
He also asked if we would be able to ask about other options through the course of the study. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that the emphasis of the study is the Molalla Forest Road, but we 
could ask that the study consider other possible access roads that could be investigated and to 
identify which roads they could be. 
 
Chair Clarke stated that we have had a couple of discussion about moving forward with the 
County doing the feasibility study. Chair Clarke asked Council if this is something we want 
Ellen to look into further.   
 
Board Member Thompson made a motion to submit the revised feasibility study grant 
application that incorporates the issues identified during the October 19, 2011 town hall meeting 
and the further elements per our discussion this evening. Chair Clarke seconded. 
 
Board Member Clark made a motion to table this for 6 months.  He also stated that we have a lot 
of other things we need to worry about in the town.  He also stated that right now we have an 
issue with our 4 way stop and we need to worry about out downtown core.  If development does 
occur he would be in support of it. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that on Monday a meeting with a prospective business that is 
looking to move into Molalla took place. They are currently looking at the Floragon Property and 
that could potentially bring in 50-75 jobs.  She stated it was a very early stage meeting and I 
don't know if that has influence now but she felt it was relevant information to share at this time. 
 
Board Member Needham asked if there was an advantage to go with an Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the County. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that the advantages of going with an IGA through the County are 
many.  

• One, it potentially would be a cost savings versus going out and trying to find another 
private entity to conduct the study.  

• Second, it would be a good political move in the sense that it provides a partnership for 
the County and the City to work together on a project.   

• It would be very beneficial especially with a transportation project that will have 
potential County wide ramifications.  

 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
Agency Director Barnes further stated that the County would not provide these services for free, 
if they decide to provide them.  The City would have to pay for the study and we can use the 
grant opportunity to help fund that or not.  
 
Board Member Needham asked that the motion that we are currently discussing does not 
incorporate the option of exploring and IGA with the County, correct? 
 
Board Member Rogge stated that she understood that it does. 
 
Board Member Needham stated that he did not hear that. 
 
Board Member Thompson stated that he asked that the intent was to include looking into an IGA 
with Clackamas County. 
 
Board Member Needham asked if we can incorporate that into the motion, because he did not 
hear that.  He stated that he heard the incorporation of the feedback that we got back from the 
community being incorporated into the motion but he didn't hear anything about the IGA. 
 
Chair Clarke stated that we have no second on the motion to table this for 6 months. 
 
Board Member Rogge stated that we have a request for restating a motion. 
 
Board Member Thompson made a motion to move ahead on the feasibility study grant 
application that incorporates the issues identified in the October 19, 2011 town hall meeting and 
also incorporate looking into contracting with Clackamas County through an IGA for the further 
study.  Board Member Pottle seconded. Motion carried (6-1); Chair Mike Clarke, Aye;  Board 
Member Wolfe, Aye; Board Member Pottle, Aye; Board Member Thompson, Aye; Board 
Member Needham, Aye; Board Member Rogge, Aye; Board Member Clark, Nay.  
 
Board Member Needham asked if we could get clarification of what the additional costs might 
be that were mentioned.  He stated that we have a $9,000 expenditure that we have approved so 
far.  There is a proposal coming back from the Oregon Business Division that said we would  
 
 
need to increase that amount.  Board Member Needham asked staff at some point in time can 
Council find out how much that cost is going to be. 
 
Property Acquisitions for the Molalla Fire District 
 
The Molalla Fire District has approached the Agency with a request that the agency purchase 
four properties located near the District’s main station.  According to the IGA signed with the 
District in 2009, MURA agreed to pay the District up to $1.585 million for capital improvements 
and property acquisitions as a condition of their support for forming the Agency.   
 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
Only one of the four properties is available for purchase at this time.  Another one of the 
properties is expected to become available February or March 2012.  The remaining two 
properties currently are occupied and have not yet been approached. 
 
Estimated purchase prices for the properties ranges from $94,000 to $173,500.  The recommended 
purchase price for the property currently available is $173,500.The Molalla Urban Renewal Plan 
allows for property acquisition.  However, according to section 800, “All acquisitions of property will 
require an amendment to the plan as set forth in Section 1100.” The Agency does not have revenue 
available to give to the District to purchase the one property currently available.  The Agency would 
have to borrow against Agency revenues to acquire one or more of the properties.  Several options 
exist to accomplish this, but will take time to research to determine what’s in the Agency’s best 
financial interests. It will require hiring a firm to reassess the agency’s revenue projections in 
conjunction with legal assistance also will be necessary for the acquisitions and for drafting 
appropriate property conveyance agreements. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated she was under the impression that we were not increasing the 
amount; that it would be remaining at our match of $9,000 and we would be agreeing to take a 
grant of a lesser amount.  
 
Chair Clarke stated that we have a property acquisition from the Molalla Fire District.  The 
Molalla Fire District has approached the Agency over time with the understanding when we 
created the agreement we had an IGA for $1.585 million for Capital Improvements with property 
for the Molalla Fire Department.  There are some properties available and now the Molalla Fire 
District would like to discuss the purchase of these properties. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated the Molalla Fire District is interested in acquiring 4 properties at 
this point in time one of the properties is vacant, 3 are not though we expect another one to 
become vacant in the spring.   
 
Gary Todd, Molalla Fire Rural Board and former Urban Renewal Board committee member for 
Molalla Fire stated that he was on the Urban Renewal Agency board when they put all of that 
land together.  Mr. Todd stated that they have spoken to the owner of the estate that owns the 
property right next to the fire station.  At this time one of the properties behind the fire station is 
empty and the other one will be vacant this spring.  Mr. Todd asked permission from the Council 
to speak to the 2 property owners behind the fire station to discuss buying them, and then come 
back to the Agency for approval. 
 
Agency Director Barnes said to make this property happen it will require several steps. We don't 
have enough revenue in the Agency at this time to buy the properties outright.  In order for the 
Agency to fund these acquisitions we would have to go with a bond option to secure the revenue 
for the Urban Renewal district. The Urban Renewal district will then have to conduct a revenue 
assessment so we can prove we have the revenue coming in because we are two distinct 
agencies.  The agency will need to work with the attorney to come up with a legal document in 
terms of how we are going to transfer the property since the property will be acquired through 
the City then convey it to the fire district. 
 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
Mr. Todd stated that they have talked to Special Districts Association of Oregon (SDAO) about 
some of those options.  The Fire Chief has brought some proposals and ideas of how the city can 
go about securing funding and that the Fire District is just waiting for an okay from the Council 
to move forward with this item. 
 
Board Member Clark asked how long it will take to do the revenue assessment.  Agency Director 
Barnes stated that she would seek that information out if council directs her to proceed with this; 
in all honesty she doesn't know how long the assessment will take.  She also stated that she has a 
meeting scheduled with the finance company that does our bonds coming up in the next week or 
so.  
 
Board Member Needham made a motion to approve the Fire District conducting these 
discussions and enable our CM to proceed with the revenue assessment to begin the process of 
complying with the recommendation with the agreement with the Fire District. 
 
Board Member Thompson stated that he would like to see the information for the revenue 
assessment before we make any commitment. Board Member Pottle seconded the motion. 
 
Board Member Clark stated the Fire District expressed purchasing more than one property at this 
time and during our work session staff had stated that we might not have the funds available 
even with the bond.  Clark also stated that the council is on board but maybe we shouldn't 
purchase all of the properties at the same time. 
 
Agency Director Barnes stated that we can work with the Fire District to make sure we don't 
over extend the URA.  Agency Director Barnes asked Board Member Needham to restate the 
motion as he intended.   
 
Board Member Needham made a motion to allow the Fire District to engage in discussion of 
property acquisitions and to allow Agency Director Barnes to proceed with the revenue 
assessment as the first step in determining how much funding we would have available for these 
property purchases.  Board Member Pottle seconded.  Motion carried (7-0); Chair Mike Clarke, 
Aye;  Board Member Wolfe, Aye; Board Member Pottle, Aye; Board Member Thompson, Aye; 
Board Member Needham, Aye; Board Member Rogge, Aye; Board Member Clark, Aye. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Board Member Rogge made a motion to adjourn. Board Member Clark seconded. Motion carried 
(7-0); Chair Mike Clarke, Aye;  Board Member Wolfe, Aye; Board Member Pottle, Aye; Board 
Member Thompson, Aye; Board Member Needham, Aye; Board Member Rogge, Aye; Board 
Member Clark, Aye. Regular Council meeting recommenced at 7:33 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Board Member Rogge made a motion adjourn the Urban Renewal meeting. Board Member 
Wolfe seconded. Motion carried (7-0); Chair Mike Clarke, Aye;  Board Member Wolfe, Aye; 
Board Member Pottle, Aye; Board Member Thompson, Aye; Board Member Needham, Aye; 



Minutes of the Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
Molalla Adult Center - 315 Kennel Ave. Molalla, Oregon 97038 

Wednesday, November 9, 2011 7:00 PM 
Board Member Rogge, Aye; Board Member Clark, Aye. Regular Council meeting recommenced 
at 7:59 p.m. 
 
______________________________  _________________________                             
City Recorder, Sadie Cramer                                      Chair Mike Clarke 
 
 



  
  
                                                

 

Molalla Urban Renewal Agency 
 

 Agenda Category: New Business 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SUBMITTED BY:  Ellen Barnes, Agency Director 
 

Subject: Approval to submit a grant application for safety improvements along a  
  section of HWY 211 near Safeway   
 

 
Recommendation: Motion to approve submission of grant application 

Date of Meeting to be Presented:     December 14, 2011 

 Fiscal Impact:  Cost estimate is $1,204,000.  Grant requires 20% match, which will be $240,800.  
Funds can be raised through issuing a bond.   

Background:   
 
The Clackamas County Community Development Division has recently issued a request for 
proposals for funding under the Community Development Block Grant program.  During the 
November 28, 2011 special session of the Molalla City Council, Council directed staff to 
develop an application to the program, requesting funding for public safety improvements 
(namely filling in ditches and extending shoulders) for a section of HWY 211 near Safeway.  
The application for funding is due December 15, 2011. 
 
At the time of developing packet materials, City staff is still working on completing the grant 
application.  Included in the City Council packet are documents being used to complete the 
final grant application.  A copy of the complete grant application will be presented to Council 
during the Council workshop preceding the December 14, 2011 Council meeting. 
 
 
































	MURA Agenda 120911
	Minutes URBAN RESERVE MEETING 11092011 docx
	AbMURA CDBG Grant
	MURA Draft CDBG Grant Application Materials

